CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES —- DECEMBER 19, 2023

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on December 19, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose Room
#CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525, Richardson, TX.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman
Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Gwen Walraven, Commissioner
Joe Costantino, Commissioner
Michael Keller, Commissioner
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Byron Purdy, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Director of Development Services
Chris Shacklett, Asst. Director of Development Sves. — Planning
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding staff
reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of November 21, 2023.

Motion:  Commissioner Costantino made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.
Seconded by Commissioner Bohnsack. Motion passed 6-0.

PUBLIC HEARING

2. Zoning File 23-14 PD Planned Development — 75 & Glenville Multi-Family: Consider and act on a
request to'rezone approximately 4.44 acres located at 2520 N. Central Expressway, at the northeast
corner.of Central Expressway and Glenville Drive, from C-M Commercial with special conditions to
PD Planned Development to accommodate a 5-story apartment development. Property Owner: Steven
Bradford, representing 2520 N. Central Expressway L.P. Staff: Chris Shacklett.

Mz. Shacklett stated this is a request to rezone approximately 4.4 acres from C-M Commercial with
special conditions to PD Planned Development to accommodate a 5-story apartment development
located at the northeast corner of Central Expressway and Glenville Drive.

Mr. Shacklett stated the property was developed in 1994 with a single-story, 20,220-square foot office
building which is now vacant. The properties to the north, south and west are office developments; to
the east is City-owned open space, DART Rail, and further to the east are apartments.

Mr. Shacklett further stated that this property and surrounding properties were designated as Regional
Employment in the Future Land Use Plan in the 2009 Comprehensive Plan. Although residential uses
were not listed specifically, the Comprehensive Plan encourages multi-family development that can
take advantage of the transit system. This site is less than a half-mile north of the Galatyn Park DART
Station via the Central Trail. Mr. Shacklett highlighted the areas specifically designated as Regional



2

Employment and provided some history regarding the rezoning of adjacent properties to allow
apartments.

Mr. Shacklett stated that as part of this request the applicant conducted a traffic impact analysis (T1A)
based on a maximum of 390 apartment units. The TIA analyzed projected traffic generated by the
proposed development and found the additional traffic did not require roadway modifications.
However, the applicant will be making modifications, including the removal of the southern driveway
along Central Expressway and to modify the median opening on Glenville Drive to allow for left turns
into the site.

Mr. Shacklett presented the proposed concept plan for a 5-story wrap apartment building. Parking
would be based on the number of bedrooms which would require one (1) parking space per bedroom.
Based on the proposed unit mix, a minimum of 478 parking spaces would be required, and 543 spaces
would be provided. The density of the project is approximately eighty-eight (88) dwelling units per
acre, which is consistent with similar multi-family developments that have recently been approved.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant is utilizing a PD Planned Development to allow a unique set of
standards to accommodate the development, rather than utilizing the City’s A-950-M Apartment
District regulations which allows a much lower density‘development. He stated the project provided
approximately 16.5% landscaping and that 10% was the minimum requirement.

Mr. Shacklett stated the proposed modifications to the Glenville Drive median would allow for left
turns into the subject property. He presented the proposed detail of the sidewalk connection to the east
along Glenville Drive where fencing would be utilized to increase pedestrian safety at the DART Rail
crossing.

Mr. Shacklett presented an exhibit reflecting how ingress and egress is provided on the site. The exhibit
demonstrated vehicular access‘nto the parking garage including an area to turn-around and exit if they
could not gain access to the secured areas within the garage. He also presented an exhibit showing
where the required amenities. would be located, including indoor amenity areas, courtyards and a dog
park.

Mr. Shacklett discussed building elevations and stated the proposed building is 75-feet-tall and is
constructed with brick and fiber cement panels and siding with metal balcony railings and canopies. He
stated that staff had requested additional architectural elements be added to the west facade of the
garage to increase the architectural detail and interest along the open garage facade. He presented
renderings of staff’s preferred concept showing additional elements such as angled metal fins with
louvers and internal lighting. He stated if the Commission recommended approval, the recommendation
should include a condition stating the additional architectural elements be required as part of the
attached elevation exhibits.

Mr. Shacklett. stated no correspondence had been received regarding the request and that he was
available to answer any questions.

With no questions of staff, Vice Chairman Southard invited the applicant forward to present the request.

Mr. Jeff Patton, JLB Partners, 5832 Gardendale Drive, Dallas, TX came forward to present the
applicant’s request. He discussed the history of JLB and their track record of excellence in the D/FW
area and within the City of Richardson. Mr. Patton stated they were requesting approval of a PD Planned
Development to accommodate an apartment development.

Mr. Patton discussed how the site was not suitably positioned for office or retail uses and is better suited
for apartment development. He presented information related to office vacancy rates. He stated the



3

site’s mid-block location made it undesirable for commercial uses and that these uses would be more
likely to locate on Campbell Road or Renner Road. He continued stating the site is well suited for multi-
family development due to the access to public transit, and park and trail amenities.

Commissioner Roberts asked what the rent ranges would be for the proposed units.
Mr. Patton stated rent would range from $1,575 to $2,750 with an average rent of $2,000.

Mr. Patton stated the location was not adjacent to single-family neighborhoods which made the use
more appropriate. He continued by showing the proximity of transit, trails and employment and retail
opportunities. He also stated the walk to the Galatyn Park DART Station was-only a 10-minute walk
through the Galatyn Woodland Preserve.

Commissioner Roberts asked about where the Silver Line would be located.
Mr. Patton explained the access to Silver Line would be at the CityLine DART Station.

Mr. Patton presented an exhibit showing how the site can access the various trails within the area that
connect to the rest of the City.

Mr. Patton presented renderings, concept plans, and interior photos and renderings that demonstrated
the building design as well as the outdoor and indoor amenities that would be provided. He explained
how the individual units would be designed to accommodate residents who would work from home.
He continued by providing information regarding their unit mix and that the project is market rate, but
that it would provide some units that would be considered affordable. He also addressed Commission
comments related to the proximity of the building to Central Expressway.

Commissioner Roberts asked about the type of lighting that would be provided on site.

Mr. Patton stated the interior courtyard would be lit with ground level bollards. There are also lighting
requirements for egress so there needs to be a certain level of light. In the front, there will be wall packs
on the building and those will emit light to make the area safe for the residents and any visitors.

Mr. Patton presented the proposed garage fagade along the west elevation. They wanted to deemphasize
the garage by adding brick and light sconces to the spandrels to help the garage blend into the building
design.”He stated the spandrels fully screened vehicles parked at the perimeter of the garage. He
provided a rendering showing the building along a real-world photo of the site to demonstrate how the
garage blended in. He then presented a rendering of the staff’s preferred option which included the
addition of the metal fins and internal lighting. He felt that design drew more attention to the garage.

Mr. Patton further discussed the economic development impact that would occur if the site was
redeveloped for apartments in addition to the additional consumer spending that would occur. He
concluded his presentation and asked for the Commission’s favorable recommendation.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if there were any further questions for the applicant or if there was
anyone who wanted to speak in favor of the request.

Mr. Shri Boppana, 2985 Marlow Lane, Richardson, TX came forward to speak in favor of the request,
stating he was the owner of the property on the south side of Glenville Drive at 2460 N. Central
Expressway.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if there was anyone else who wished to speak. Seeing none, Vice
Chairman Southard closed the public hearing.



Commissioner Costantino stated he understood why a development that was not consistent with
Regional Employment was appropriate.

Commissioner Keller stated he agreed with Commissioner Costantino and commented that things had
changed since the 2009 Comprehensive Plan was adopted, and it made sense to have this type of
development in the area.

Commissioner Roberts asked if anyone had calculated the impact on the school districts with the
addition of this development.

Mr. Shacklett stated they did not have any calculations; however, they didsend notice to Plano ISD
and did not receive any additional feedback.

Mr. Patton stated they had demographers look at the proposed unit mix to determinethe number of
school aged children that would live in the development. The unit mix was not conducive to having
many families since there are so many 1-bedroom units.

Vice Chairman Southard stated the development was ideal for the area.
Chairman Roberts commented on the changing demographics in the City.

Vice Chairman Southard commented that many people who work in Richardson may want to live in
Richardson and the additional housing units may make that possible.

Motion: Commissioner Walraven made a motion to recommend approval of the request
that includes the staff preferred concept for the parking garage design on the west
elevation.. Commissioner Costantino seconded the motion. Motion passed 6-0.

ADJOURN
With no further business before the Commission, Vice Chairman Southern adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:54 p.m.

Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman





